Corporate Director (Law and Governance) and
Monitoring Officer, T W Mortimer LLB Solicitor

SELECTION & CONSTITUTIONAL REVIEW
COMMITTEE
Notice of a Meeting, to be held as a Virtual Meeting on Microsoft Teams in accordance
with Regulation 5 of The Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus)
(Flexibility of Local Authority and Police Crime Panel Meetings) (England and Wales)
Regulations 2020 on Thursday, 19th November, 2020 at 6.00 p.m. (PLEASE NOTE
EARLIER STARTING TIME)

The Members of the Selection & Constitutional Review Committee are:Councillor Clarkson (Chairman)
Councillor Bartlett (Vice-Chairman)
Cllrs.

Barrett, Chilton, Clokie, Farrell, Feacey, Harman, Hayward, Howard-Smith,
Ovenden, Wright

IMPORTANT INFORMATION ABOUT THIS VIRTUAL MEETING:Please note the public cannot physically “attend” a Virtual Meeting. However any member
of the press and public may listen-in to proceedings at this ‘virtual’ meeting via a weblink
which will be publicised on the Council’s website at www.ashford.gov.uk at least 24 hours
before the meeting. Members of the press and public may tweet, blog etc. during the live
broadcast as they would be able to during a regular Cabinet meeting at the Civic Centre.
It is important, however, that Councillors can discuss and take decisions without
disruption, so the only participants in this Virtual Meeting will be the Councillors
concerned, the Officers advising the Cabinet, and the Officers designated to address the
Cabinet on behalf of any members of the public who have registered in advance to
‘speak’ on the items to be considered. This will take the place of the usual procedure for
public speaking at the Cabinet’s regular meetings at the Civic Centre. In order to register
for this, written notice must be given on the Council’s website at
https://www.ashford.gov.uk/councillorsmeetingsandelections/councillorsandmeetings/publ
ic-participation/application-to-speakat-apublicmeeting/ or by email to
membersservices@ashford.gov.uk by 10am on the Wednesday before the meeting.
Summary of the Scheme of Public Participation for Virtual Meetings (referred to as
“VMs”)
The public cannot physically “attend” a VM.
H.M. Government has recently changed the public’s legal right to attend meetings into a
right to hear, by means of technology, the Councillors attending the VM remotely.
Written notice of a wish to speak (by means of the procedure below) at a VM must be
given, either to membersservices@ashford.gov.uk or on the Council’s website at
https://www.ashford.gov.uk/councillorsmeetingsandelections/councillorsandmeetings/public-participation/application-to-speakat-

apublic-meeting/ by 10:00 hours on the Wednesday before the VM – i.e. 10:00 a.m. on
Wednesday, 18th November, 2020.
Those registered to speak must submit to membersservices@ashford.gov.uk by 10:00
hours on the day of the VM, a copy of their speech in written, legible English. It should be
no longer than 400 words, on a single side of A4 paper, printed in 12-point non-italic
sansserif font (e.g. Arial). Any text above 400 words will not be read out.
Speeches received as above will be read to the VM by a competent Officer for and on
behalf of the speakers, at the normal times and in the normal order during the VM
(subject to the Chairman’s normal discretion).
IMPORTANT:
An Officer reading any speech on behalf of any speaker shall have discretion to omit/edit
out any inappropriate language, information or statements. If any defamation, insult,
personal or confidential information, etc. is contained in any speech received from any
speaker, and/or is read to the VM by an Officer, each speaker accepts by submitting their
speech to be fully responsible for all consequences thereof and to indemnify the Officer
and the Council accordingly.
Agenda
Page Nos..
1.

Apologies/Substitutes
To receive Notification of Substitutes in accordance with Procedure
Rule 1.2(c)

2.

Declarations of Interest

1-2

To declare any interests which fall under the following categories, as
explained on the attached document:
a) Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPI)
b) Other Significant Interests (OSI)
c) Voluntary Announcements of Other Interests
See Agenda Item 2 for further details
3.

Minutes

3-8

To approve the Minutes of the Meeting of this Committee held on the
1st October 2020.
4.

Constitutional Amendments - Licensing Arrangements

9 - 38

5.

Membership of new Licensing and Regulatory Committees

39 - 42

6.

Representatives on Outside Bodies/Organisations

43 - 46

11th November 2020

Queries concerning this agenda? Please contact
Agendas, Reports and Minutes are available on: www.ashford.gov.uk/committees

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 2

Declarations of Interest (see also “Advice to Members” below)
(a)

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPI) under the Localism Act 2011, relating to items on
this agenda. The nature as well as the existence of any such interest must be declared, and
the agenda item(s) to which it relates must be stated.
A Member who declares a DPI in relation to any item will need to leave the meeting for that
item (unless a relevant Dispensation has been granted).

(b)

Other Significant Interests (OSI) under the Kent Code of Conduct relating to items on this
agenda. The nature as well as the existence of any such interest must be declared, and the
agenda item(s) to which it relates must be stated.
A Member who declares an OSI in relation to any item will need to leave the meeting before
the debate and vote on that item (unless a relevant Dispensation has been granted).
However, prior to leaving, the Member may address the Committee in the same way that a
member of the public may do so.

(c)

Voluntary Announcements of Other Interests not required to be disclosed under (a) and
(b), i.e. announcements made for transparency alone, such as:
 Membership of amenity societies, Town/Community/Parish Councils, residents’ groups or
other outside bodies that have expressed views or made representations, but the Member
was not involved in compiling or making those views/representations, or
 Where a Member knows a person involved, but does not have a close association with
that person, or
 Where an item would affect the well-being of a Member, relative, close associate,
employer, etc. but not his/her financial position.
[Note: Where an item would be likely to affect the financial position of a Member, relative,
close associate, employer, etc.; OR where an item is an application made by a Member,
relative, close associate, employer, etc., there is likely to be an OSI or in some cases a DPI.
ALSO, holding a committee position/office within an amenity society or other outside body, or
having any involvement in compiling/making views/representations by such a body, may give
rise to a perception of bias and require the Member to take no part in any motion or vote.]

Advice to Members on Declarations of Interest:
(a)

Government Guidance on DPI is available in DCLG’s Guide for Councillors, at
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/5962/2193362.pdf

(b)

The Kent Code of Conduct was adopted by the Full Council on 19 July 2012,
and a copy can be found in the Constitution alongside the Council’s Good Practice Protocol
for Councillors dealing with Planning Matters. See https://www.ashford.gov.uk/media/2098/z-word5democratic-services-constitution-2019-constitution-of-abc-may-2019-part-5.pdf

(c)

Where a Member declares a committee position or office within, or membership of, an outside
body that has expressed views or made representations, this will be taken as a statement
that the Member was not involved in compiling or making them and has retained an open
mind on the item(s) in question. If this is not the case, the situation must be explained.

If any Member has any doubt about any interest which he/she may have in any item on this
agenda, he/she should seek advice from the Director of Law and Governance and Monitoring
Officer, or from other Solicitors in Legal and
Democracy
as early as possible, and in advance
Page
1
of the Meeting.

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item
SCR 3
Ashford Borough Council: Selection and
Constitutional Review Committee
Minutes of a Virtual Meeting of the Selection and Constitutional Review Committee held
on Microsoft Teams on the 1st October 2020.
Present:
Cllr. Bartlett (Vice-Chairman in the Chair);
Cllrs. Barrett, Clokie, Farrell, Feacey, Harman, Ledger, Ovenden, C Suddards, Wright.
In accordance with Procedure Rule 1.2 (c) Councillors Ledger and C Suddards attended
as Substitute Members for Councillors Hayward and Chilton respectively.
Apologies:
Cllrs. Chilton, Clarkson, Hayward, Howard-Smith.
Also Present:
Cllrs. Burgess, Shorter.
In Attendance:
Head of Planning and Development, Principal Solicitor (Strategic Development),
Environmental Protection and Licensing Team Leader, Member Services Manager
(Operational).

94

Minutes

Councillor Barrett referred to his appointment as a Liaison Member with the Singleton
Spaces Trust which appeared to have been removed from the list of Outside Body
appointments. The Member Services Manager (Operational) agreed to investigate and
add this back on to the list.
Resolved:
That the Minutes of the Meeting of this Committee held on the 30th June 2020 be
approved and confirmed as a correct record.

95

Proposed Changes to the Scheme of Delegations to
Officers Regarding Planning and Development Decisions

The report sought changes to the Scheme of Delegations to Officers regarding Planning
and Development decisions. This related to: - retaining the delegations granted under
urgency powers at the start of the coronavirus crisis in relation to Reserved Matters
applications, Section 73 applications, and Tree Preservation Orders; extending the

Page 3
127

SCR
011020
scope of existing delegations in relation to major planning applications; and adding the
Head of Planning and Development to all of the delegations related to the Planning and
Development Service.
A revised version of the Appendix to the report (to which the recommended
amendments referred) had been circulated the previous day and was referred to by the
Principal Solicitor (Strategic Development).
In accordance with Procedure Rule 9.3, Mr Ransley, a local resident and Kingsnorth
Parish Councillor, had registered to speak on this item. His speech was read to the
Committee by the Member Services Manager (Operational) and this is attached to these
Minutes at Appendix A.
In response to the public speaker, the Principal Solicitor (Strategic Development)
advised that the points made around the use of the word “can” rather than “must” had
perhaps resulted from the way he had written Paragraph 3(A) of the report. This was not
a direct quote from the Constitution, it was a summary of complex legalistic provisions
for Members’ benefit. To clarify, it was a matter of judgement for the relevant Planning
Officers mentioned, whether an application was “sensitive” such that it should be
decided by the Planning Committee. The test was not that it was purely “sensitive”, but
that it was sensitive when viewed in the round and, if that was the case, their delegation
was suspended and they were not able to determine it, so it effectively became a “must”
at that point and it must be reported to the Committee. So the way the Constitution
worked did deliver what Mr Ransley was asking for, and there was thus no need to
amend the recommendation.
Members then discussed the report and the following responses were given to
questions/comments: 

The importance of Ward Members working closely with their Parish Councils in
order to get relevant applications elevated to the Planning Committee was
emphasised. It was also emphasised that the proposals in no way fettered the
rights of Ward Members to call any Planning applications to the Committee.



There were a myriad of National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and Local
Plan policies to recognise the green agenda when determining planning
applications, and Officers would be reminded of the importance of utilising these.



Some Members expressed concerns over the threshold of up to 2.5 hectares for
the site area of a delegated housing application where there was no indication of
how many dwellings were to be included, and wondered if this should be reduced
to 1.25 hectares. There were also some concerns about major applications up to
50 housing units being delegated because, depending on location, these could be
very significant developments. It was reiterated that the proposed delegation
would allow such applications to be refused without a report to the Committee,
and also regardless of the new thresholds, any Planning application could still be
called to Committee by a Ward Member if they deemed it appropriate.



The existing arrangement for consulting with Committee Members on certain
applications to be decided under delegated powers would be extended to the new

Page 4
128

SCR
011020
delegations described in Paragraph 18 of, and the revised Appendix to, the
report. This procedure gave the Committee Members the opportunity to decide if
they wanted the Committee to consider the application or not and if six or more
Members wanted it to go to Committee, it would.


In response to general comments about the backlog of major applications and
whether this was a consequence of the Planning Committee process, or of
resourcing in the Planning Team, it was confirmed that the backlog was
recognised and had been highlighted in the recent Planning Advisory Service
review. It was vitally important to avoid designation and potentially lose the right
to determine major applications. The main reason for the backlog was the fact
that so few major applications were decided in Planning Committee meetings.
There was also not a simple solution of increasing the number of Planning
Committee meetings because these still had to be properly resourced and an
increase in meetings would not necessarily lead to more applications being dealt
with in a more timely or efficient fashion. On resourcing, it was recognised that
there had been significant problems with recruiting good quality Planning Officers
to Ashford. It did not appear to be an issue of location or finances, but
unfortunately those individuals had not appeared to be out there in the market.
There were still vacancies where recruitment continued to be pursued and it was
hoped they may be more successful this time around to help alleviate some of the
current problems.



There was a recognition that there were occasions when applications were called
to Committee by Ward Members which would have been better discussed
informally between Members and Officers to seek clarity or a resolution, or where
applications were called in and the Ward Member did not then appear at Planning
Committee to make their case, and these instances were extremely frustrating.
These were perhaps issues that needed further consideration within Groups, or
with the Chairman of the Committee.



Whilst Ward Members could not refer a TPO confirmation to the Planning
Committee, the Portfolio Holder for Planning and Development could, and he
confirmed that he would be receptive to supporting Ward Members with these
where appropriate.



It was confirmed that, if approved, the new arrangements would come into effect
for both existing and new applications, following the Full Council meeting on the
15th October 2020. If existing applications had already been called in, this would
not affect those and they would remain called in unless the call-in was withdrawn.
The Head of Planning and Development advised that the Ward Members would
be notified before existing applications were determined under the new delegated
powers.

The Portfolio Holder for Planning and Development spoke to formally record that he
supported the report and the recommendations within it.

Page 5
129

SCR
011020
Recommended:
That

(i)

the increased delegations to Officers described in Paragraphs 13, 1820 (as amended by the revised Appendix) and 23 of the report, be
agreed.

(ii)

the clarifications to the Member Call-in safeguards as described in
Paragraphs 16 and 21 of the report be agreed.

Constitutional Amendment – Pavement Licensing

96

The report recommended an amendment to the Responsibility for Functions in the
Constitution (Delegations to the Community Safety and Wellbeing Manager(s)), in order
to make specific written reference to the new Pavement Licensing regime.
Recommended:
That the changes to the Constitution as set out in Paragraph 4 of the report be
approved.

97

Update to Appointments to Committees and Outside
Bodies

The report advised the Committee of a small number of updates to the appointments
reported to this Committee on the 30th June 2020, and subsequently ratified at the
Annual Meeting of the Council on the 16th July 2020. These appointments were made
following the passing of Councillor Alex Ward.
Resolved:
That the following appointments be noted and approved: 



Appeals Committee – Cllr Anckorn
Joint Transportation Board – Cllr Spain
Ashford Almshouses and Parochial Charities – Cllr Lyn Suddards.

________________________________________________________________
Queries concerning these Minutes? Please contact Member Services:
Telephone: 01233 330349 Email: membersservices@ashford.gov.uk
Agendas, Reports and Minutes are available on: http://ashford.moderngov.co.uk

Page 6
130

SCR
011020
APPENDIX A
To Members,
Thank you for allowing me to speak. I hope members are not minded to delegate so
much and in particular disagree with the existing delegations of reserved matters on
major sites. If you are minded to delegate then I would highlight: Under the Urgency measures one of the safeguards is as below‘(A) the Strategic Development and Delivery Manager or the Development Management
Manager can report to Committee any application or TPO confirmation that they
consider to be sensitive such that it should be decided by the Committee’
I would hope that members will seek clarity on what is necessary for the hurdle of
‘should’ to be met. As an example the Reserved Matters application at Parcel R in
Chilmington Green, which was determined under these powers, received objection from
both Great Chart Parish Council (the host Parish), Kingsnorth Parish Council (the
immediately adjacent Parish and downstream) and the ward member immediately
adjacent wished for the application to be called in (as did Kingsnorth Parish). This
application resulted in –
-

Houses being built on the floodplain
The ground levels have been raised out of the floodplain but no compensating
land has been lowered.
The application was beyond the scope of the original Outline Permission for
Chilmington which conditioned that the Reserved Matters must not exceed the
scope of the EIA assessment…That EIA assessment expressly stating numerous
times that there would be no built development in Flood Zones 2 and 3…which it
now is.

Mr Baker provided a response to some issues with this decision at the time but was
unable to forward an explanation of the way officers addressed the floodplain issues at
the time. I have taken advice from a Barrister and they still believe that the decision was
flawed here as no Reserved Matters application can exceed the scope of the original
EIA without updating it.
How was the ‘should’ not triggered in this case, it would seem to provide no safeguard
at all.
I believe this situation arises as a result of the ‘can’ in (A) and would respectfully request
that if members are minded to accept the principle of this recommendation it be
amended to read‘(A) the Strategic Development and Delivery Manager or the Development Management
Manager must report to Committee any application or TPO confirmation that they
consider to be sensitive such that it should be decided by the Committee’

Page 7
131

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 4
Agenda Item No:

4

Report To:

Selection and Constitutional Review Committee

Date of Meeting:

19 November 2020

Report Title:

Constitutional Amendments – Licensing arrangements

Report Author
Job Title:

& Trevor Ford
Environmental Protection & Licensing Team Leader

Portfolio Holder:
Cllr. Peter Feacey
Portfolio Holder for: Portfolio Holder for Community Safety and Wellbeing

Summary:

The report recommends an amendment to the Responsibility
for Functions in the Constitution to create a second licensing
committee as a result of the Statutory Standards for Taxi
Licensing, and in light of legal advice on ensuring that the
responsibilities for functions remain legally robust.

Key Decision:

NO

Significantly
Affected Wards:

Not applicable

Recommendations:

The Committee is asked to recommend to Full Council
that the changes in the Constitution as set out in
Appendix 2A and 2B of this report be made.

Policy Overview:

There is a duty to review the Constitution and keep it up to
date.

Financial
Implications:
Legal Implications

None
The proposed changes would future strengthen the
constitution and licensing arrangements and thus further
reduce the risk that decision are quashed under appeal.

Equalities
Impact Not applicable
Assessment
Other Material
Implications:

None

Exempt from
Publication:

NO

Page 9

Background
Papers:
Contact:

None
trevor.ford@ashford.gov.uk – Tel: (01233) 330397

Page 10

Agenda Item No. 4

Constitutional Amendments - Licensing arrangements
Introduction and Background
1.

In July 2020, the Department for Transport published the Statutory Taxi and
Private Hire Vehicle Standards, which required that the council have regard to
amending the delegations with respect to taxi and private hire vehicle licensing.

2.

The principle change was that all taxi and private hire licensing decisions should
be referred to a sub-committee hearing in order to determine applications with
the exception of:
•
•

Applications where there is no prior history to be considered, and
Urgent decisions to be taken in the immediate interest of protecting
public safety.

3.

All decisions are currently delegated to an authorised officer of the council,
whereas after these amendments, only those two exceptions above will remain
as delegated decisions.

4.

As such there is now a need to delegate these powers to a committee, and subcommittee.

5.

However, due to legal limitations placed upon the constitutional setup of
licensing committees, under the Licensing Act 2003 and Local Government Act
1972, it is necessary to assign this responsibility to a committee constituted
separately to the main Licensing and Health & Safety Committee.

6.

As it is also the purpose of the Council’s constitution to enable decisions to be
taken efficiently and effectively and to ensure that those responsible for
decision-making are clearly identifiable to local people, it appears a sensible
time to amend the existing delegations to ensure that the constitutional
arrangements are clear and legally robust.

7.

Additional to the issue of the responsibility of these functions, the statutory
standards also require that members of the council responsible for making such
decisions should be trained in matters pertaining to taxi and private hire
licensing, and as such it appears prudent to include this requirement into the
amendments.

Proposal
8.

In order to address the matters raised above, it is proposed to create a second
committee (and sub-committee) in order to consider taxi and private hire
licensing matters. This will include the responsibility for functions including the
grant, suspension, and revocation of licences, and also the requirement for
members of the committee to be trained in matters pertaining to the licensing
regime. For ease of reference it is suggested this new committee is named the
‘Regulatory Committee’.

Page 11

9.

In line with current good practice and legal requirements, is also proposed that
the new Regulatory Committee take responsibility for all matters held by the
current Licensing and Health & Safety Committee, except for those falling under
the remit of the Licensing Act 2003 and Gambling Act 2005.

10.

This will then result in two committees that consider licensing and other
regulatory matters, namely the ‘Licensing Committee’ as constituted under the
Licensing Act 2003, and the ‘Regulatory Committee’ as constituted under the
Local Government Act 1972.

11.

The Regulatory Committee must be politically balanced in accordance with s.15
of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989, whereas there is no formal
requirement for the Licensing Committee to be politically balanced under the
requirements of the Licensing Act. It is, however, a recommendation of this
report that for efficiency the two committees have the same members and a
similar structure with regard to their sub-committees. As such both committees
should be politically balanced, therefore allowing the same membership.

12.

Appendix 1 contains the current constitutional arrangements for the Licensing
Health & Safety Committee. Whilst Appendix 2A and 2B contains the proposed
updated scheme of responsibilities taking on board the above
recommendations.

13.

It may therefore be of interest to note, that despite the set-up of a second
committee, and need to refer taxi-licensing matters to a sub-committee hearing,
the overall workload of members in this area is not expected to increase
significantly.

Conclusion
14.

I recommend that changes to the Constitution as set out in this report be
agreed. This will ensure that the Council’s arrangements are understandable
and are legally robust.

Portfolio Holder’s Views
15.

The changes proposed will strengthen our decisions as a licensing authority
and further reduce the risk of legal challenge. It is through our licensing work
that we ensure the necessary checks and controls are in place to help ensure
the safety and wellbeing of our communities. I support the changes as
recommended.
Cllr Peter Feacey
Portfolio Holder for Community Safety and Wellbeing

Contact and Email
16.

Trevor Ford (01233) 330397 – trevor.ford@ashford.gov.uk

Page 12

Appendix 1

Part 3
Responsibility for Functions
Appendix 4
Terms of Reference of Council Committees and Delegations
Licensing and Health and Safety Committee

Licensing and Health and Safety Committee
Membership

13 Members

Terms of Reference
To consider and advise the Council upon:1.

The setting of fees and charges in relation to the licensing and
registration functions as specified in Schedule 1 to the Local
Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities) (England) Regulations
2000 and the Local Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities)
(England) (Amendments) Regulations 2001 as listed in Part B of
and the setting of
application fees under paragraph 6 (1) of schedule 1 to the Scrap
Metal Dealers Act 2013

2.

The setting of fees for applications under the Gambling Act 2005.

3.

Issues arising from functions relating to Health and Safety under
the Health and Safety at Work Act 1974 to the extent that those
functions are not discharged otherwise than i
capacity as an employer.

4.

A statement of principles in relation to Family Entertainment Centre
Gaming Machine Permits or Prize Gaming Permits.

5.

Issues arising from the functions relating to the Health Act 2006 and
Smoke-Free Regulations.
(Minute No. 111/7/07 refers).

6.

Applications under the provisions of the Licensing Act 2003 as set
out in the terms of reference of the Licensing Sub-Committee.

Delegations
7.

The determination of applications for licences, consents, permits etc
under legislation within the remit of the Committee and which are
referred to the Committee by the Community Safety and Wellbeing
Manager.

8.

Applications under the following provisions of the Gambling Act
2005:

Page
13
149

$bmx1iurn

Part 3
Responsibility for Functions
Appendix 4
Terms of Reference of Council Committees and Delegations
Licensing and Health and Safety Committee
Matter to be dealt with and
relevant provision
a. Application for Premises Licence
(Section 162)
b. Application for variation to a
Premises Licence (Section 187)
c. Application for transfer of a
Premises Licence (Section 188)
d. Application for a provisional
statement (Section 204)
e. Review of a Premises Licence
(Section 201)
f. Application for Club Gaming
Permit or Club Machine Permit
(Sections 271 274 and Schedule
12)
g. Cancellation of Club Gaming
Permit or Club Machine Permit
(Sections 271 274) and
Schedule 12)
h. Decision to give a counter notice
to a Temporary Use Notice
(Section 224)
i.
Application for licensed premises
Gaming Machine Permit (Section
283)
j.
Cancellation or variation of a
licensed premises Gaming
Machine Permit (Section 284)
k. Application for a Family
Entertainment Centre Gaming
Machine Permit (Section 247)
l.
Application for a Prize Gaming
Permit
(Section 289)
m. Consideration of objections to a
Temporary Use Notice and
decision whether to give a
counter-notice (Section 224)

Circumstances under which a
hearing is held
If representations made and not
withdrawn
If representations made and not
withdrawn
If representations received from the
Commission
If representations made and not
withdrawn
All cases
If objections have been made and not
withdrawn; or if intention to refuse the
application
All cases

All cases
If intention to refuse the application,
either wholly or in part
All cases
If intention to refuse the application
If intention to refuse the application
If notices of objection have been given
and not withdrawn (unless all parties
agree that a hearing is unnecessary)

Notes
1.
The attendance at a relevant Licensing Training session is a
prerequisite to membership of the Committee, including substitute Members.
Members should undertake training/refresher training at least once every four

$bmx1iurn

Page
14
150

Part 3
Responsibility for Functions
Appendix 4
Terms of Reference of Council Committees and Delegations
Licensing and Health and Safety Committee

Quorum:
One quarter of the total membership.

Page
15
151

$bmx1iurn

Part 3
Responsibility for Functions
Appendix 4
Terms of Reference of Council Committees and Delegations
Licensing Sub-Committee

Licensing Sub Committee
Membership

3 Members*

Terms of Reference
To consider and determine:
1.

a.
b.
c.
d.
e.

f.
g.
h.
i.
j.

Applications under the following provisions of the Licensing Act 2003:
Provision under which a hearing is
held
Section 18(3)(a) (determination of
application for premises licence)
Section 20 (mandatory conditions:
exhibition of films)
If referred by officer for determination
Section 31(3)(a) (determination of
application for a provisional
statement)
Section 35(3)(a) (determination of
application to vary premises licence)
Section 39(3)(a) (determination of
application to vary premises licence
to specify individual as premises
supervisor)
Section 44(5)(a) (determination of
application for transfer of premises
licences)
Section 48(3)(a) (cancellation of
interim authority notice following
police objection)
Section 52(2) (determination of
application for review of premises
licence)
Section 72(3)(a) (determination of
application for club premises
certificate)
Section 85(3) (determination of
application to vary club premises
certificate)

$bmx1iurn

Page
16
152

Circumstances under which a
hearing is held
If representations made

If representations made
If representations made
If police representation made

If police representation made
All cases
All cases
If representations made
If representations made

Part 3
Responsibility for Functions
Appendix 4
Terms of Reference of Council Committees and Delegations
Licensing Sub-Committee

k.
l.
m.
n.
o.
p.
q.
r.
s.

t.

Provision under which a hearing is
held
Section 88(2) (determination of
application for review of club
premises certificate)
Section 105(2)(a) (counter notice
following police objection to
temporary event notice)
Section 120(7)(a) (determination of
application for grant of personal
licence)
Section 121(6)(a) (determination of
application for the renewal of
personal licence)
Section 124(4)(a) (convictions coming
to light after grant or renewal of
personal licence)
Section 167(5)(a) (review of premises
licence following closure order)
Paragraph 4(3)(a) of Schedule 8
(determination of application for
conversion of existing licence)
Paragraph 16(3)(a) of Schedule 8
(determination of application for
conversion of existing club certificate)
Paragraph 26(3)(a) of Schedule 8
(determination of application by
licence for grant
of personal licence)
Section 25A (Determination of
application for the alternative licence
condition to be included in the licence
instead of the conditions in Section
19(2) and (3))

Circumstances under which a
hearing is held
All cases
All cases
If police representation made
If police representation made
All cases
All cases
If police representation made
If police representation made
If police representation made

If police representation made

Page
17
153

$bmx1iurn

Part 3
Responsibility for Functions
Appendix 4
Terms of Reference of Council Committees and Delegations
Licensing Sub-Committee

u.

v.
w.
x.
y.

Provision under which a hearing is
held
Section 41D (Determination of
application by community premises to
disapply the mandatory conditions for
alcohol on a premises)
Section 52A (Determination of
application for a review: supply of
alcohol from community premises)
Section 53A (Determination of
application for expedited reviews)
Section 53B (Determination of
application for interim steps)
Section 53C (Determination of
application for a review of premises
licence following review notice)

Circumstances under which a
hearing is held
If police representation made

If police representation made
If police representation made
If police representation made
If police representation made

Note: (t) to (y) added by virtue of Minute No. 407/2/10.
2.

a.
b.
c.
d.
e.
f.

Applications under the following provisions of the Gambling Act 2005:
Matter to be dealt with and relevant
provision
Application for Premises Licence
(Section 162)
Application for variation to a Premises
Licence (Section 187)
Application for transfer of a Premises
Licence (Section 188)
Application for a provisional
statement (Section 204)
Review of a Premises Licence
(Section 201)
Application for Club Gaming Permit or
Club Machine Permit (Sections 271
274 and Schedule 12)

$bmx1iurn

Page
18
154

Circumstances under which a
hearing is held
If representations made and not
withdrawn
If representations made and not
withdrawn
If representations received from the
Commission
If representations made and not
withdrawn
All cases
If objections have been made and
not withdrawn; or if intention to
refuse the application

Part 3
Responsibility for Functions
Appendix 4
Terms of Reference of Council Committees and Delegations
Licensing Sub-Committee

g.
h.
i.
j.
k.
l.
m.

3.

Matter to be dealt with and relevant
provision
Cancellation of Club Gaming Permit
or Club Machine Permit (Sections
271 274) and Schedule 12)
Decision to give a counter notice to a
Temporary Use Notice (Section 224)
Application for licensed premises
Gaming Machine Permit (Section
283)
Cancellation or variation of a licensed
premises Gaming Machine Permit
(Section 284)
Application for a Family
Entertainment Centre Gaming
Machine Permit (Section 247)
Application for a Prize Gaming Permit
(Section 289)
Consideration of objections to a
Temporary Use Notice and decision
whether to give a counter-notice
(Section 224)

Circumstances under which a
hearing is held
All cases
All cases
If intention to refuse the application,
either wholly or in part
All cases
If intention to refuse the application
If intention to refuse the application
If notices of objection have been
given and not withdrawn (unless all
parties agree that a hearing is
unnecessary)

Requests by officers for the determination of all other licencing matters
(including but not limited to applications, suspensions, revocations and
other enforcement options) except those matters listed under other
relevant committees (Minute No 172/10/19 refers).

Notes:
*

1.

Three Members per meeting shall be drawn on an ad-hoc
basis from the membership of the Licensing and Health and
Safety Committee. The meeting will still be quorate in the
event of one Member having to leave the meeting.

2.

In determining applications under the above provisions the
Sub-Committee shall have regard to any guidance given by
the Licensing and Health and Safety Committee in relation
thereto.

3.

Provisions under which hearings under the Licensing Act
2003 may be heard and the period of time within which
hearings must be commenced is set out at Appendix A.

4.

A Procedure Note for the conduct of meetings of the SubCommittee for hearings under the Licensing Act 2003 is set
out in Appendix B.

Page
19
155

$bmx1iurn

Part 3
Responsibility for Functions
Appendix 4
Terms of Reference of Council Committees and Delegations
Licensing Sub-Committee
Appendix A

Appendix A
Provisions under which hearings may be heard and the period
of time within which hearings must be commenced

1.

Provision under which hearing is
held.
Section 18(3)(a) (determination of
application for premises licence).

2.

Section 31(3)(a) (determination of
application for a provisional
statement).

3.

Section 35(3)(a) (determination of
application to vary premises
licence).

4.

Section 39(3)(a) (determination of
application to vary premises licence
to specify individual as premises
supervisor).
Section 44(5)(a) (determination of
application for transfer of premises
licence).

5.

6.

Section 48(3)(a) (cancellation of
interim authority notice following
police objection).

7.

Section 52(2) (determination of
application for review of premises
licence).

8.

Section 72(3)(a) (determination of
application for club premises
certificate).

$bmx1iurn

Page
20
156

Period of time within which
hearing must be commenced.
20 working days beginning with the
day after the end of the period during
which representations may be made
as prescribed under section 17(5)(c).
20 working days beginning with the
day after the end of the period during
which representations may be made
as prescribed under section 17(5)(c)
by virtue of section 30.
20 working days beginning with the
day after the end of the period during
which representations may be made
as prescribed under Section 17(5)(c)
by virtue of section 34(5).
20 working days beginning with the
day after the end of the period within
which a chief officer of police may
give notice under section 37(5).
20 working days beginning with the
day after the end of the period within
which a chief officer of police may
give notice under section 42(6).
5 working days beginning with the
day after the end of the period within
which a chief officer of police may
give notice under section 48(2).
20 working days beginning with the
day after the end of the period during
which representations may be made
as prescribed under section 51(3)(c).
20 working days beginning with the
day after the end of the period during
which representations may be made
as prescribed under section 71(6)(c).

Part 3
Responsibility for Functions
Appendix 4
Terms of Reference of Council Committees and Delegations
Licensing Sub-Committee Appendix A

9.

Provision under which hearing is
held.
Section 85(3) (determination of
application to vary club premises
certificate).

10. Section 88(2) (determination of
application for review of club
premises certificate).
11. Section 105(2)(a) (counter notice
following police objection to
temporary event notice).
12. Section 120(7)(a) (determination of
application for grant of personal
licence).
13. Section 121(6)(a) (determination of
application for the renewal of
personal licence).
14. Section 124(4)(a) (convictions
coming to light after grant or
renewal of personal licence).
15. Section 167(5)(a) (review of
premises licence following closure
order).
16. Paragraph 4(3)(a) of Schedule 8
(determination of application for
conversion of existing licence).
17. Paragraph 16(3)(a) of Schedule 8
(determination of application of
conversion of existing club
certificate).

Period of time within which
hearing must be commenced.
20 working days beginning with the
day after the end of the period during
which representations may be made
as prescribed under section 71(6)(c)
by virtue of section 84(4).
20 working days beginning with the
day after the end of the period during
which representations may be made
as prescribed under section 87(3)(c).
7 working days beginning with the
day after the end of the period within
which a chief officer of police may
give a notice under section 104(2).
20 working days beginning with the
day after the end of the period within
which the chief officer of police may
give a notice under section 120(5).
20 working days beginning with the
day after the end of the period within
which the chief officer of police may
give a notice under section 121(3).
20 working days beginning with the
day after the end of the period within
which the chief officer of police may
give a notice under section 124(3).
10 working days beginning with the
day after the day the relevant
licensing authority receives the notice
given under section 165(4).
10 working days beginning with the
day after the end of the period within
which a chief officer of police may
give a notice under paragraph 3(2) or
(3) of Schedule 8.
10 working days beginning with the
day after the end of the period within
which the chief officer of police may
give a notice under paragraph 15(2)
or (3) of Schedule 8.

Page
21
157

$bmx1iurn

Part 3
Responsibility for Functions
Appendix 4
Terms of Reference of Council Committees and Delegations
Licensing Sub-Committee
Appendix A
Provision under which hearing
is held.
Paragraph 26(3)(a) of Schedule 8
(determination of application by

Period of time within which
hearing must be commenced.
18.
10 working days beginning with the
day after the end of the period within
which the chief officer of police may
grant of personal licence).
give a notice under paragraph 25(2)
of Schedule 8.
19. Section 25A (Application for the
20 working days beginning with the
alternative licence condition to be
day after the end of the period during
included in the licence instead of
which represenetations may be
the conditions in Section 19(2) and made as prescribed under Section
(3))
51(3)(c).
20. Section 41D (Application by
20 working days beginning with the
community premises to disapply
day after the end of the period during
the mandatory conditions for
which representations may be made
alcohol on a premises)
as prescribed under Section 51(3)(c).
21. Section 52A (Review: supply of
20 working days beginning with the
alcohol from community premises) day after the end of the period during
which representations may be made
as prescribed under Section 51(3)(c).
22.* Section 53A (Determination of
48 hours from the time of the receipt
application for expedited reviews)
of the application.
23.* Section 53B (Determination of
48 hours from the time of the receipt
application for interim steps)
of the application.
24. Section 53C (Determination of
28 days beginning with the day after
application for a review of premises the end of the period during which an
licence following review notice)
application for review is received.
Note: 19-24 added by virtue of Minute No. 407/2/10
* In cases Nos. 22 and 23 above the procedure note will be as Appendix C.

$bmx1iurn

Page
22
158

Part 3
Responsibility for Functions
Appendix 4
Terms of Reference of Council Committees and Delegations
Licensing Sub-Committee
Appendix B

Appendix B
Procedure Note for Licensing Hearings
1.

Prior to the meeting of the Committee1, the Committee will have
documents referred to in it.

2.

The hearing will take place in public, subject to a discretion to
exclude the public and/or parties where the public interest in doing
so outweighs the public interest in the hearing taking place in
public2. The Committee may also exclude anyone behaving
disruptively.3

3.

The parties4 are entitled to be assisted or represented by any
person, whether or not legally qualified. A party is entitled to
withdraw any of their representations orally at the hearing or at least
24 hours before the day or the first day of the hearing.5

4.

The Committee may extend any time limit in the Regulations for a
specified period where it considers this to be necessary in the
public interest, but must state the period of the extension and the
reason for it.6 For example, the Committee may extend the time for
making a request to call a witness (see paragraph 16 below).

5.

Where a party has notified the authority that he does not intend to
attend, the Committee will proceed with the hearing in his absence.
Where he has not so notified the authority but does not attend, the
Committee may adjourn the hearing to a specified date where it
considers it necessary in the public interest to do so. Otherwise, it
will proceed with the hearing.7

______________________________________________________________
1
2
3

Reg 14 Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005
Reg 25

4

5
6
7

includes objectors and responsible authorities, such as the Police
Reg 10
Reg 11
Reg 20

Page
23
159

$bmx1iurn

Part 3
Responsibility for Functions
Appendix 4
Terms of Reference of Council Committees and Delegations
Licensing Sub-Committee
Appendix B
6.

Before proceeding in the absence of a party who has not indicated
that they do not wish to attend, the Licensing Officer should attempt
-attendance.

7.

The Committee may adjourn the hearing to a specified, or extra,
date where it considers this to be necessary for the determination of
the case. 8 There are limitations on the ability of the Committee to
adjourn the case beyond the time limits for determination during the
transitional period and on reviews following closure orders by the
police.9

8.

At the outset of the meeting, a Chair will be elected and any
personal and/or prejudicial interests declared.10

9.

Except where the Regulations make specific requirements, the
procedure will be in the discretion of the Committee.11

10.

At the beginning of the hearing, the Committee will explain to the
parties the procedure it proposes to follow.12

11.

The Chairman will indicate that all the papers before the Committee
have been read and that the Committee is familiar with the issues.
He will ask the parties to avoid repetition.

12.

The Chairman will indicate the order of presentation.

13.

If there are a number of objectors present, the Chairman may
request that a spokesperson be appointed. He will make it clear that
any party13 who wishes to speak will be able to do so, and that the
appointment of a spokesperson does not mean that the objections
of any interested party will be given less weight.

14.

The Chairman may also indicate how the Committee intends to deal
with conditions proposed by the parties or by the Committee itself.
He may ask the parties to attempt to agree a schedule of conditions
for use if the Committee is minded to grant the application. This will
not mean that the Committee has formed any view of the merits. It
will only come to its decision at the end.

______________________________________________________________
8
9
10
11
12
13

Reg 12
Reg 13
Model Code of Conduct
Reg 21
Reg 22
see footnote 4

$bmx1iurn

Page
24
160

Part 3
Responsibility for Functions
Appendix 4
Terms of Reference of Council Committees and Delegations
Licensing Sub-Committee
Appendix B
15.

A party is entitled to be represented or assisted by another person,
whether or not that person is legally qualified. 14

16.

If a party wishes a person (other than himself or his representative)
to appear at the hearing he must have made a request to do so
prior to the hearing within the times prescribed in Reg. 8. The
request must name the person and give a brief description of the
point(s) on which that person may be able to assist. In such a case,
the Committee will determine the application for permission at the
outset of the hearing.15 In determining that request, the authority will
consider the representations of all parties upon the matter and may
consider the relevance of the proposed evidence, the assistance it
will in fact offer to the Committee and the prejudice to the parties, if
the evidence is admitted or excluded.16

17.

Each of the parties has a right to:
(a)
(b)
(c)

address the Committee;
give clarification of any point, where such clarification has
been sought by the Council in its notice of hearing;
question any other party, but only where this is expressly
permitted by the Committee (see para 21 below). 17

18.

The Committee must allow an equal maximum time for the parties
to exercise their rights as set out in para 17 above. 18

19.

The Committee will set the time of the hearing at the outset, having
regard to its view of the length reasonably required for the hearing.
It may hear the parties briefly before setting the maximum time. It
may extend the time where circumstances require. 19

20.

The hearing is to take the form of a discussion led by the
Committee.20 The Chairman will ensure that within the discussions,
all parties are given an opportunity to state their case as set out in
their written application/ representations and to meet the case of
opposing parties.

______________________________________________________________
14
15
16
17
18
19
20

Reg 15
Reg 22
Reg 22
Reg 16
Reg 24
Reg 11
Reg 23

Page
25
161

$bmx1iurn

Part 3
Responsibility for Functions
Appendix 4
Terms of Reference of Council Committees and Delegations
Licensing Sub-Committee
Appendix B
21.

Cross-examination will not be permitted unless the Committee
considers that it is required for it to give proper consideration to the
case.21 Any application to cross-examine will be heard and dealt
with at the hearing.

22.

The Committee may consider cross-examination to be required, for
example, where there is a genuine issue of fact, which can only be
resolved fairly through cross-examination.

23.

The Committee may question any party or other person(s)
appearing.22

24.

The Committee may take into account documentary or other
information provided by a party before the hearing. Information
produced at the hearing may only be taken into account with the
consent of all other parties.23 The parties are therefore strongly
recommended to exchange documentary evidence and brief
summaries of any proposed witness evidence at least 5 days before
the hearing, otherwise they may be restricted in the information they
can put before the committee. Any material exchanged should also
be given to the licensing authority at the same time.

25.

The Committee must disregard any information given which is not
relevant to the application, representations or notice of the party
giving the information. The Committee must also disregard any
information which is not relevant to the promotion of the licensing
objectives.24

26.

In certain circumstances, the Committee is required by law to make
its determination at the conclusion of the hearing. This includes
certain applications made during the transitional period, counternotices following police objections to temporary events notices, and
reviews of premises licences following closure orders. Otherwise
the Committee is required to determine the application within five
working days of the day or the last day on which the hearing was
held.25

27.

The Committee will give reasons for its decision and will confirm the
decision in writing to the parties.

______________________________________________________________
21
22
23
24
25

Reg 23
Reg 17
Reg 18
Reg 19
Reg 26

$bmx1iurn

Page
26
162

Part 3
Responsibility for Functions
Appendix 4
Terms of Reference of Council Committees and Delegations
Licensing Sub-Committee
Appendix C

Appendix C
Summary Review Procedures
On receipt of an application from the Police for a summary review of the
premises licence the Licensing Authority must:
i.

within 48 hours of the time of its receipt, consider whether it is
necessary to take interim steps pending the determination of a review
of the premises licence; and

ii.

within 28 days after the day of its receipt, review that licence.

In calculating the 48 hours any time that is not on a working day is to be
disregarded.

The Interim Steps Pending Review
The interim steps that the licensing authority must consider taking are as
follows:
i.

The modification of the conditions of the premises licence (i.e. the
alteration, omission or addition of or to the conditions);

ii.

The exclusion of the sale of alcohol by retail from the scope of the
licence;

iii.

The removal of the Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS);

iv.

The suspension of the licence.

Where the licensing authority takes one or more of the steps above that
decision takes effect immediately or as soon after as the licensing authority
directs. Notice must be given immediately to the Premises licence holder and
the Chief Officer of Police.
The Premises licence holder may make representations about the interim
steps and should this occur a hearing must be held within 48 hours of receipt
to consider those representations. Once again the 48 hours are determined
by working days only.
Advance notice of the hearing must be given to the Premises Licence holder
and the Chief Officer of Police.
At the hearing the licensing authority must have regard to the certificate from
the Police that accompanied the application, any representations by the
Police and the representations of the Premises Licence holder.

Page
27
163

$bmx1iurn

Part 3
Responsibility for Functions
Appendix 4
Terms of Reference of Council Committees and Delegations
Licensing Sub-Committee
Appendix C
The subsequent full review hearing is to be conducted in accordance with the
review provisions specified in section 51 of the Licensing Act 2003.

Procedure for the Licensing Sub Committee.
The Licensing Manager or their representative will advise legal services
and democratic services of the receipt of the application. The Chair of the
Licensing and Health & Safety Committee or deputy will then be informed
and arrangements made for 3 Members to be available within 48 hours to
sit as a Sub Committee.
If Members are unable to meet in person then a conference call will be
arranged for the purposes of holding the Interim Hearing.
At the hearing a report will be given to Members by the Licensing Manager
or their representative advising them of the application and the interim
steps will be considered. The meeting shall be attended by the 3 members
of the Sub Committee, legal services, democratic services and the
Licensing Manager or representative. Any decision made shall be relayed
to the Premises Licence holder and the Chief Officer of Police, both
verbally and in writing by the Licensing section that same day.
A full review hearing shall be arranged which must be held no later than 28
days after the receipt of the certificate from the Police.
If representations are received from the Premises Licence holder as a
result of the interim steps the Sub Committee will be reconvened within 48
hours of receipt to deal with these representations. The Premises Licence
holder and Chief Officer of Police will be notified of the hearing and invited
to attend. A verbal report will again be given by the Licensing Manager or
their representative. Members must then consider whether the interim
steps are necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives and
determine whether to withdraw or modify the interim steps.
Members must have regard to the certificate submitted by the Police, any
representations made by the Police and the representations made by the
Premises Licence holder. Any decision shall be relayed to the Premises
Licence holder and the Chief Officer of Police, both verbally and in writing
by the Licensing section that same day.
At the full review hearing the normal procedure for dealing with reviews
shall be followed.

$bmx1iurn

Page
28
164

Part 3
Responsibility for Functions
Appendix 4
Terms of Reference of Council Committees and Delegations
Licensing Committee

Appendix 2A

Licensing Committee
Membership

13 Members
(Reflecting the political proportionality of the council)

Terms of Reference
1.

To advise and recommend the Council upon on the setting of fees for
applications under the Gambling Act 2005.

2.

To advise and recommend the Council upon on adoption of a statement of
principles under the Gambling Act 2005, and a statement of policy under
the Licensing Act 2003

3.

To determine applications under the provisions of the Licensing Act
2003 and Gambling Act 2005.

Delegations
4.

To delegate the decision making for applications under the Licensing
Act 2003 and Gambling Act 2005 to the Licensing Sub-Committee as
set out in the terms of reference of the Licensing Sub-Committee

Notes
1.

The attendance at a relevant Licensing Act training session is a
prerequisite to membership of the Committee, including substitute
Members.

2.

Members should undertake training/refresher training at least once
every four years to remain ‘eligible’ to sit on this committee.

Quorum:
One quarter of the total membership.

Page 29

Part 3
Responsibility for Functions
Appendix 4
Terms of Reference of Council Committees and Delegations
Licensing Sub-Committee

Licensing Sub Committee
Membership

3 Members*

Terms of Reference
To consider and determine:
1.

a.
b.

c.

d.
e.

f.

g.

h.

i.

j.

Applications under the following provisions of the Licensing Act 2003:
Provision under which a hearing is
held
Section 18(3)(a) (determination of
application for premises licence)
Section 20 (mandatory conditions:
exhibition of films)
If referred by officer for determination
Section 31(3)(a) (determination of
application for a provisional
statement)
Section 35(3)(a) (determination of
application to vary premises licence)
Section 39(3)(a) (determination of
application to vary premises licence
to specify individual as premises
supervisor)
Section 44(5)(a) (determination of
application for transfer of premises
licences)
Section 48(3)(a) (cancellation of
interim authority notice following
police objection)
Section 52(2) (determination of
application for review of premises
licence)
Section 72(3)(a) (determination of
application for club premises
certificate)
Section 85(3) (determination of
application to vary club premises
certificate)

Page 30

Circumstances under which a
hearing is held
If representations made

If representations made

If representations made
If police representation made

If police representation made

All cases

All cases

If representations made

If representations made

Part 3
Responsibility for Functions
Appendix 4
Terms of Reference of Council Committees and Delegations
Licensing Sub-Committee

k.

l.

m.

n.

o.

p.
q.

r.

s.

t.

Provision under which a hearing is
held
Section 88(2) (determination of
application for review of club
premises certificate)
Section 105(2)(a) (counter notice
following police objection to
temporary event notice)
Section 120(7)(a) (determination of
application for grant of personal
licence)
Section 121(6)(a) (determination of
application for the renewal of
personal licence)
Section 124(4)(a) (convictions coming
to light after grant or renewal of
personal licence)
Section 167(5)(a) (review of premises
licence following closure order)
Paragraph 4(3)(a) of Schedule 8
(determination of application for
conversion of existing licence)
Paragraph 16(3)(a) of Schedule 8
(determination of application for
conversion of existing club certificate)
Paragraph 26(3)(a) of Schedule 8
(determination of application by
licence for grant
of personal licence)
Section 25A (Determination of
application for the alternative licence
condition to be included in the licence
instead of the conditions in Section
19(2) and (3))

Circumstances under which a
hearing is held
All cases

All cases

If police representation made

If police representation made

All cases

All cases
If police representation made

If police representation made

If police representation made

If police representation made

Page 31

Part 3
Responsibility for Functions
Appendix 4
Terms of Reference of Council Committees and Delegations
Licensing Sub-Committee

u.

v.

w.
x.
y.

2.

a.
b.
c.
d.
e.
f.

Provision under which a hearing is
held
Section 41D (Determination of
application by community premises to
disapply the mandatory conditions for
alcohol on a premises)
Section 52A (Determination of
application for a review: supply of
alcohol from community premises)
Section 53A (Determination of
application for expedited reviews)
Section 53B (Determination of
application for interim steps)
Section 53C (Determination of
application for a review of premises
licence following review notice)

Circumstances under which a
hearing is held
If police representation made

If police representation made

If police representation made
If police representation made
If police representation made

Applications under the following provisions of the Gambling Act 2005:
Matter to be dealt with and relevant
provision
Application for Premises Licence
(Section 162)
Application for variation to a Premises
Licence (Section 187)
Application for transfer of a Premises
Licence (Section 188)
Application for a provisional
statement (Section 204)
Review of a Premises Licence
(Section 201)
Application for Club Gaming Permit or
Club Machine Permit (Sections 271
274 and Schedule 12)

Page 32

Circumstances under which a
hearing is held
If representations made and not
withdrawn
If representations made and not
withdrawn
If representations received from the
Commission
If representations made and not
withdrawn
All cases
If objections have been made and
not withdrawn; or if intention to
refuse the application

Part 3
Responsibility for Functions
Appendix 4
Terms of Reference of Council Committees and Delegations
Licensing Sub-Committee

g.

h.
i.

j.

k.

l.
m.

Matter to be dealt with and relevant
provision
Cancellation of Club Gaming Permit
or Club Machine Permit (Sections
271 274) and Schedule 12)
Decision to give a counter notice to a
Temporary Use Notice (Section 224)
Application for licensed premises
Gaming Machine Permit (Section
283)
Cancellation or variation of a licensed
premises Gaming Machine Permit
(Section 284)
Application for a Family
Entertainment Centre Gaming
Machine Permit (Section 247)
Application for a Prize Gaming Permit
(Section 289)
Consideration of objections to a
Temporary Use Notice and decision
whether to give a counter-notice
(Section 224)

Circumstances under which a
hearing is held
All cases

All cases
If intention to refuse the application,
either wholly or in part
All cases

If intention to refuse the application

If intention to refuse the application
If notices of objection have been
given and not withdrawn (unless all
parties agree that a hearing is
unnecessary)

Notes:
*

1.

Three Members per meeting shall be drawn on an ad-hoc
basis from the membership of the Licensing Committee. The
meeting will still be quorate in the event of one Member
having to leave the meeting.

2.

In determining applications under the above provisions the
Sub-Committee shall have regard to any guidance given by
the Licensing Committee in relation thereto.

3.

Provisions under which hearings under the Licensing Act
2003 may be heard and the period of time within which
hearings must be commenced are set out in the relevant
regulations.

Page 33

Part 3
Responsibility for Functions
Appendix 4
Terms of Reference of Council Committees and Delegations
Regulatory Committee

Appendix 2B
Regulatory Committee
Membership

13 Members
(Reflecting the political proportionality of the council)

Terms of Reference
1.

Except in the case of the Licensing Act 2003 and Gambling Act 2005
functions assigned to the Licensing Committee, to discharge all of the
functions of the council as licensing/regulatory authority as prescribed by
relevant acts which include;
a) The issue, renewal, transfer, suspension, and revocation of
hackney carriage, private hire vehicle, driver and operator
licenses;
b) The discharge of relevant functions relating to the licensing of sex
establishments; and
c) The discharge of all other functions relating to licensing and
regulation in so far as they are the responsibility of the borough
council.

2.

To advise and recommend the Council upon the setting of fees and
charges in relation to the licensing and registration functions as
specified in Schedule 1 to the Local Authorities (Functions and
Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 2000 and the Local
Authorities
(Functions
and
Responsibilities)
(England)
(Amendments) Regulations 2001 as listed in Part B of Appendix 3 to
Part 3 of the Council’s Constitution and the setting of application fees
under paragraph 6 (1) of schedule 1 to the Scrap Metal Dealers Act
2013

3.

To advise and recommend the Council upon the setting of Licensing
Policies, with the exception of those made under the Licensing Act
2003 and the Gambling Act 2005.

4.

Issues arising from functions relating to Health and Safety under
the Health and Safety at Work Act 1974 to the extent that those
functions are not discharged otherwise than i
capacity as an employer.

Page 34

Part 3
Responsibility for Functions
Appendix 4
Terms of Reference of Council Committees and Delegations
Regulatory Sub-Committee
5.
Issues arising from the functions relating to the Health Act 2006 and
Smoke-Free Regulations.

Delegations
6.

To delegate the decision making for applications and functions within
the remit of the Regulatory Committee to the Regulatory SubCommittee

Notes
1.

The attendance at a relevant ‘taxi and private hire licensing’ training
session is a prerequisite to membership of the Committee, including
substitute Members.

2.

Members should undertake training/refresher training at least once
every four years to remain ‘eligible’ to sit on this Committee.

Quorum:
One quarter of the total membership.

Page 35

Page 36

Part 3
Responsibility for Functions
Appendix 4
Terms of Reference of Council Committees and Delegations
Regulatory Sub-Committee

Regulatory Sub Committee
Membership

3 Members*

Terms of Reference
1. To consider and determine applications and the pursuit of functions in
relation to those referred to the Sub-Committee under the delegations
made by the Regulatory Committee. This includes, but is not limited to the
following matters;
a)
Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 Determination of application for the grant/renewal/transfer/variation or
revocation of a sex shop, sex cinema or sexual entertainment venue
licence
b)
Town Police Clauses Act 1847, Public Health Act 1875 and Local
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 - to exercise the
Council’s powers and duties in relation to the licensing of hackney
carriages and private hire vehicles, including the licensing of vehicles,
drivers and operators, the control of numbers of hackney carriages, and
the licensing of private hire operators where the matter has been referred
by the delegated officer.

Notes:
*

1.

Three Members per meeting shall be drawn on an ad-hoc
basis from the membership of the Regulatory Committee.
The meeting will still be quorate in the event of one Member
having to leave the meeting.

2.

In determining applications under the above provisions the
Sub-Committee shall have regard to any guidance given by
the Regulatory Committee in relation thereto.

Page 37

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5
Agenda Item No. 5

Selection and Constitutional Review Committee
19th November 2020
Report of the Member Services Manager (Operational)
Membership of new Licensing and Regulatory Committees.
Purpose of Report
To consider the appointment of Members to the two new Licensing and Regulatory
Committees. This follows the previous recommendation of this Committee to create
these Committees in place of the existing Licensing and Health and Safety Committee. If
the proposals to amend the Committee structure are not agreed earlier at this Meeting,
then the proposals in this report will not be necessary.
External Consultees
None.
Internal Consultees
The Leaders of Groups on the Council.
Financial/Legal and Human Rights Implications
The Authority is required to adopt a political balance which complies with the Local
Government and Housing Act 1989 and associated regulations. Alternative
arrangements are permitted only if no individual Member votes against the proposal.
Staffing Implications
None.
Environmental Implications
None.
Corporate Strategy
Not relevant in the context of this report.
Consideration

Page 39

In normal circumstances, any changes to the Authority’s Committee Structure part way
through a Municipal Year would result in the need for a review of the Political Balance of
the Authority for the remainder of that Year. However, at the current time, following the
passing of Councillor Alex Ward, the Council has a vacant seat which, due to the current
Covid-19 pandemic, cannot be filled by a By-Election until May 2021. The Political
Balance Regulations under the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 do not allow a
re-balance to take place whilst there are vacant seats. Normally a By-Election would be
able to take place in a matter of weeks so this issue would not arise.
To resolve this impasse, and to allow the two new Committees to be operational and
discharge their duties from January 2021, it is proposed that until the By-Election can
take place (hopefully May 2021), membership of the Licensing and Regulatory
Committees should mirror the current membership of the existing Licensing and Health
and Safety Committee (as detailed at Appendix A to this report). This will ensure
continuity of membership and previously trained Members. The Committees will then be
able to operate until such time that it is possible for the Council to agree a full re-balance
report (hopefully in May 2021 when the result of the By-Election will be known). That
report will reflect the new balance of the Authority and be operational in the normal way
for the 2021/22 Municipal Year.
Group Leaders have been consulted on this proposal and are supportive.
Recommendations:
That until such time that the By-Election for the vacant Beaver Ward Seat can take
place, and the Council can adopt a new Political Balance for the Authority, that
membership of the new Licensing and Regulatory Committees mirror the current
membership of the existing Licensing and Health and Safety Committee (as
detailed at Appendix A).

Danny Sheppard
Member Services Manager (Operational)

Page 40

Appendix A
LICENSING AND HEALTH AND SAFETY COMMITTEE (13 MEMBERS)
Group Leaders are reminded of the importance of nominating Members who are
available to attend day-time hearings of the Licensing Sub-Committee.
Training is compulsory for anyone sitting on the Licensing and Health and Safety
Committee.
Conservative

Labour

Green

(8)
Buchanan

Ashford
Independent
(3)
Ledger

(2)
Farrell

(0)

Burgess

Rogers

L Suddards

Feacey

Smith

Krause (VCh)
Mulholland
Pickering
Shorter
Webb (Ch)

Page 41

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6
Agenda Item No:

6

Report To:

Selection and Constitutional Review Committee

Date of Meeting:

19th November 2020

Report Title:

Representatives on Outside Bodies/Organisations

Report Author &
Job Title:

Danny Sheppard – Member Services Manager (Operational)

Portfolio Holder
Cllr. Clarkson
Portfolio Holder for: (Leader of the Council)

Summary:

To advise the Committee of the need to make a nomination
to a position as a Representatives on an Outside
Body/Organisation.

Key Decision:

NO

Significantly
Affected Wards:

Willesborough

Recommendations:

The Committee is asked to make a nomination for the
appointment of a Council representative to sit on the
Willesborough Windmill Trust.

Policy Overview:

The appointment of Members to outside
bodies/organisations assists Councillors in their community
engagement role.

Financial
Implications:

None

Legal Implications

None

Equalities Impact
Assessment

Not Required

Other Material
Implications:

None

Exempt from
Publication:

NO

Background
Papers:

None

Contact:

danny.sheppard@ashford.gov.uk – Tel: (01233) 330349

Page 43

Agenda Item No. 6

Representatives on Outside Bodies/Organisations
Introduction and Background
1.

To advise the Committee of the need to make a nominations to a position as a
Representatives on and Outside Body/Organisation.

Current Position/Proposal
Willesborough Windmill Trust
2.

The Council previously, until the review in 2017, appointed a representative to
the Willesborough Windmill Trust. This was traditionally one of the Ward
Members for the area. During the 2017 review, the Trust was one of the
organisations who did not reply as continuing to require a representative.

3.

The previous Ward Member Councillor George Koowaree actually carried on
attending meetings of the Trust until he stood down in May 2019, so the
absence of a Council presence has not been felt until recently.

4.

The Trust have now been in contact indicating that they would appreciate the
appointment of a Council representative to act as a Liaison Member as a point
of contact with the Council.

5.

The Willesborough Windmill Trust is the overall body in charge of the
Willesborough Windmill. A good local knowledge and an interest in the
projects of the Windmill would be an advantage. Meetings are held three or
four times a year, normally at the Windmill in the evening.

6.

As per the Council’s agreed arrangements for such appointments, as a
Liaison Member, Councillors will attend board or committee meetings with the
permission of the board or committee, but are not able to vote on any
decisions and will not be registered at the Charity Commission or Companies
House as a director or trustee. Liaison Members are still be able to bring their
invaluable experience and contacts, both within the Council and within the
community, to the benefit of the organisation, and act as a bridge between the
organisation at the Council, but are not hampered by possible conflicts of
interest.

7.

The Committee is therefore asked to consider making an appointment to this
position.

Implications and Risk Assessment
8.

The appointment of Members to outside bodies/organisations assists
Councillors in their community engagement role.

Page 44

Conclusion
The Committee is asked to make a nomination for the appointment of a
Council representative to sit on the Willesborough Windmill Trust.

Portfolio Holder’s Views
The Leader of the Council is Chairman of this Committee and will give his views at
the Meeting

Contact and Email
Danny Sheppard (01233) 330349 – danny.sheppard@ashford.gov.uk

Page 45

This page is intentionally left blank

